

Board of Behavioral Sciences

Order of Adoption

The Board of Behavioral Sciences of the Department of Consumer Affairs hereby amends and adopts regulations in Division 18 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations, as follows:

ARTICLE 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

§1800. DECLARATORY DECISIONS

No decision or opinion issued by the Board is a declaratory decision under Government Code Sections 11465.10.-11465.70. unless the decision or opinion specifically states that it is a "Declaratory Decision".

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and ~~4990.14~~4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 11465.10-11465.70, Government Code.

§1802. DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of the rules and regulations contained in this chapter, the term "board" means the Board of Behavioral Sciences; and the term "Code" means the Business and Professions Code.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and ~~4990.14~~4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4990 ~~and~~ ~~4990.1~~, Business and Professions Code.

§1803. DELEGATION OF CERTAIN FUNCTIONS

The power and discretion conferred by law upon the board to receive and file accusations; issue notices of hearing, statements to respondent and statements of issues; receive and file notices of defense; determine the time and place of hearings under Section 11508 of the Government Code; issue subpoenas and subpoenas duces tecum; set and calendar cases for hearing, issue orders compelling an evaluation of a licensee's physical or mental condition in accordance with Section 820 of the Business and Professions Code and perform other functions necessary to the efficient dispatch of the business of the board in connection with proceedings under the provisions of Section 11500 through 11528 of the Government Code, prior to the hearing of such proceedings; and the certification and delivery or mailing of copies of decisions under Section 11518 of said code are hereby delegated to and conferred upon the executive officer, or, in his or her absence from the office of the board, the acting executive officer.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and ~~4990.14~~4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 820, 4980.07, ~~4990.8 and~~ ~~4990.13~~ 4990.04 and 4990.12, Business and Professions Code; and Section 11500-11528, Government Code.

§1804. FILING OF ADDRESSES

Each person or professional corporation regulated by the board shall maintain a current mailing address with the board and shall notify the board within thirty (30) days concerning any change of address giving both the old and new addresses.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60, 4990.11 and ~~4990.14~~4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.07, ~~4990.11 and~~ ~~4990.13~~, 4990.08 and 4990.12, Business and Professions Code.

§1805. APPLICATIONS

(a) Applications submitted to the board for registration or licensure shall be on a form prescribed by the board.

(b) A 180-day waiting period is required between examinations for any applicant retaking an examination. In the event special or unusual circumstances occur that impact the examination, the Board's Executive Officer may allow for a lesser period of time, as long as the integrity of the examination or examination security is not compromised.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4988.2, and 4990.20 (a), Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.30, 4980.40, 4989.20, 4987-6, 4992, and 4996.2, 4999.50 and 4999.54, Business and Professions Code.

§1805.1. PERMIT PROCESSING TIMES

"Permit" as defined by the Permit Reform Act of 1981 means any license, certificate, registration, permit or any other form of authorization required by a state agency to engage in a particular activity or act. Processing times for the board's various programs are set forth below. The actual processing times reflect the period from the date the board receives an application to the date a license or registration is issued, and apply to those persons who take and pass the first actual available examination.

<i>PROGRAM</i>	Maximum time for notifying that application is complete or deficient	Maximum time after receipt of a complete application to issue or deny license or registration	ACTUAL PROCESSING TIMES BASED ON PRIOR TWO YEARS		
			<i>Minimum</i>	<i>Median</i>	<i>Maximum</i>
MFT Intern Registration	60 days	30 days	15	100	186
MFT License	90 days	120 days	104	182	260
LCSW Associate Registration	60 days	30 days	15	53	90
LCSW License	90 days	120 days	104	178	253
LEP License	90 days	120 days	98	179	260
CE Provider Approval	30 days	30 days	n/a	n/a	n/a
MFT Referral Service Registration	30 days	30 days	n/a	n/a	n/a
All Renewals	30 days	60 days	28	42	56

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 650.4, 4980.60 and ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 15376, Government Code.

§1806. ABANDONMENT OF APPLICATION

An application shall be deemed abandoned under any of the following circumstances:

(a) The application has not been completed by the applicant within one (1) year after it has been filed. An application shall be deemed complete when all documents and information required have been submitted to the board.

(b) The applicant does not submit information required in order to correct the deficiencies specified in a deficiency letter within one (1) year from the date of the deficiency letter.

(c) The applicant fails to sit for the standard written examination within one (1) year after being notified of initial eligibility to take the standard written examination.

(d) The applicant fails to sit for the clinical vignette examination within one (1) year of being notified of passing the standard written examination.

(e) The applicant fails to sit for the jurisprudence and ethics examination required in Section 4999.52 and 4999.54 of the Code within one (1) year after being notified of initial eligibility to take the jurisprudence and ethics examination.

(f) The applicant fails to sit for the examination required in 4999.54 (b) (2) of the Code within one (1) year after being notified of initial eligibility to take the examination.

(g) The applicant fails to sit for an examination required in 4999.52 (c) (5) of the Code within one (1) year after being notified of initial eligibility to take that examination.

~~(e)~~ (h) An applicant fails to retake an examination within one (1) year from the date the applicant was notified of failing an examination.

~~(f)~~ (i) The applicant fails to pay the initial license fee within one (1) year after notification by the board of successful completion of examination requirements.

An application submitted after an application has been abandoned shall be treated as a new application, including any fees required, and current requirements.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60 and 4990.20 (a), Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.30, 4980.35, 4984.7, 4989.20, 4989.68, 4992, and 4996.3, 4999.50, 4999.52, 4999.54, and 4999.120, Business and Professions Code.

§1807. HUMAN SEXUALITY TRAINING

The human sexuality training required of marriage and family therapists, ~~and~~ clinical social workers, and professional clinical counselors by Sections 25, ~~and~~ 4980.41, 4996.2, and 4999.32 of the Code shall:

- (a) Consist of a minimum of ten (10) hours of training or coursework.
- (b) Include the study of physiological-psychological and social-cultural variables associated with sexual identity, sexual behavior or sexual disorders.
- (c) Have been completed after January 1, 1970, and shall have been obtained from one of the educational institutions or entities specified herein:
 - (1) An educational institution accredited by one or more of those entities specified in Section 1832 of these regulations, including extension courses offered by such institutions; or
 - (2) An educational institution approved by the Bureau for Private Postsecondary ~~and Vocational~~ Education pursuant to Sections ~~94900 and 94901~~ 94802 and 94887 of the Education Code, including extension courses offered by such institutions; or
 - (3) A continuing education provider approved by the board; or
 - (4) A course sponsored by a professional association; or
 - (5) A course sponsored, offered, or approved by a state, county, or local department of health services or department of mental health.

§1807.2. CHILD ABUSE ASSESSMENT TRAINING REQUIREMENTS

In addition to all other requirements for licensure, All all persons applying for a license as a marriage and family therapist, clinical social worker, or professional clinical counselor or renewal of a license as an ~~marriage and family therapist or clinical social worker~~ educational psychologist shall in addition to all other requirements for licensure, have completed coursework or training in child abuse assessment and reporting and shall submit documentation to the board. The coursework or training in child abuse assessment and reporting shall consist of not less than 7 classroom hours and shall include training in each of the subject areas described in Section 28 of the Code. The coursework or training shall be:

(a) Obtained at an educational institution, or in an extension course offered by an institution which is accredited by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges, or approved by the Bureau for Private Postsecondary and Vocational Education, pursuant to Sections ~~94900 and 94904~~ 94802 and 94887 of the Education Code; or

(b) Obtained from a statewide professional association representing the professions of psychology, social work or marriage and family therapy; or

(c) Obtained from or sponsored by a local, county, state or federal governmental entity, or licensed health facility; or

(d) Obtained from a continuing education provider approved by the board.

(e) Completed after January 1, 1983.

(f) A licensed educational psychologist shall meet the requirements of this section prior to applying for his or her first license renewal on or after January 1, 2012.

§1810. ALCOHOLISM AND OTHER CHEMICAL SUBSTANCE DEPENDENCY TRAINING

(a) The instruction and training in alcoholism and other chemical substance dependency required by Sections 4980.41, 4980.80, 4980.90, 4996.2, ~~and 4996.17~~, and 4999.32 of the Code shall consist of not less than fifteen hours of classroom training or coursework and shall include each of the following areas:

(1) The definition of alcoholism and other chemical dependency, and the evaluation of the abuser.

(2) Medical aspects of alcoholism and other chemical dependency.

(3) Current theories of the etiology of substance abuse.

(4) The role of persons and systems that support or compound the abuse.

(5) Major treatment approaches to alcoholism and chemical dependency.

(6) Legal aspects of substance abuse.

(7) Knowledge of certain populations at risk with regard to substance abuse.

- (8) Community resources offering assessment, treatment and follow-up for the abuser and family.
- (9) The process of referring affected persons.
- (10) Education concerning and prevention of substance abuse.

(b) For persons subject to Section 4980.41 (d) of the Code, the training or coursework shall be:

(1) Obtained from an educational institution or in an extension course offered by an institution that is either accredited by one or more of the entities specified in Section 1832 of these regulations or is approved by the Bureau for Private Postsecondary and Vocational Education pursuant to Sections ~~94900 and 94904~~ 94802 and 94887 of the Education Code;

(c) For all others, the training or coursework shall be:

- (1) Obtained from the educational institutions identified in subsection (b) (1); or
- (2) Obtained from or sponsored by a local, county, state or federal governmental entity; or
- (3) Obtained from a licensed health facility; or
- (4) Obtained from a continuing education provider approved by the board.

(d) A licensed educational psychologist that renews his or her license on or after January 1, 2012 shall receive not less than fifteen (15) hours of instruction and training in alcoholism and other chemical substance dependency that shall include classroom training or coursework in each of the following areas:

- (1) The definition of alcoholism and other chemical dependency, and the evaluation of the abuser.
- (2) Medical aspects of alcoholism and other chemical dependency.
- (3) Current theories of the etiology of substance abuse.
- (4) The role of persons and systems that support or compound the abuse.
- (5) Major treatment approaches to alcoholism and chemical dependency.
- (6) Legal aspects of substance abuse.
- (7) Knowledge of certain populations at risk with regard to substance abuse.
- (8) Community resources offering assessment, treatment and follow-up for the abuser and family.
- (9) The process of referring affected persons.
- (10) Education concerning and prevention of substance abuse.

(e) Training and coursework received pursuant to subsection (d) of this section shall be obtained as provided in subsection (c) of this section.

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~4980.60, 4989.34~~ 4990.14 and 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.41, 4980.80, 4980.90, ~~4989.34, 4996.2, and 4996.17, and 4999.32~~, Business and Professions Code.

§1810.1. CALIFORNIA LAW AND ETHICS TRAINING; ACCEPTABLE EDUCATION PROVIDERS

The California law and ethics training required of professional clinical counselors and out-of-state marriage and family therapist applicants required by Sections 4980.80 and 4999.32 of the Code shall:

(a) Have been obtained from one of the educational institutions or entities specified herein:

(1) An educational institution accredited by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges or one or more of those entities specified in Section 1832 of these regulations, including extension courses offered by such institutions; or,

(2) An educational institution approved by the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education pursuant to Sections 94802 and 94887 of the Education Code, including extension courses offered by such institutions; or

(3) A continuing education provider approved by the board; or

(4) A course sponsored, offered, or approved by a state, county, or local department of health services or department of mental health.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.80 and 4999.32, Business and Professions Code.

§1810.2. CRISIS OR TRAUMA COUNSELING TRAINING

The crisis or trauma counseling training required by Sections 4999.32 of the Code shall:

(a) Have been obtained from one of the educational institutions or entities specified herein:

(1) An educational institution accredited by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges or one or more of those entities specified in Section 1832 of these regulations, including extension courses offered by such institutions; or,

(2) An educational institution approved by the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education pursuant to Sections 94802 and 94887 of the Education Code, including extension courses offered by such institutions; or

(3) A continuing education provider approved by the board; or

(4) A course sponsored, offered, or approved by a state, county, or local department of health services or department of mental health.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 4999.32, Business and Professions Code.

§1811. USE OF LICENSE NUMBER IN DIRECTORIES AND ADVERTISEMENTS

All persons or referral services regulated by the board who advertise their services shall include their license or registration number in the advertisement unless such advertisement contains the following specific information:

(a) The full name of the licensee or registered referral service as filed with the board; and

(b) A designation of the type of license or registration held as follows:

(1) Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist.

(2) Licensed Educational Psychologist.

(3) Licensed Clinical Social Worker.

(4) Registered MFT Referral Service.

(5) Licensed Professional Clinical Counselor

(c) An unlicensed Marriage and Family Therapist Registered Intern may advertise if such advertisement complies with Section 4980.44~~(a)(4)~~(c) of the Code making disclosures required by that section.

(d) An unlicensed Associate Clinical Social Worker may advertise if such advertisement complies with Section 4996.18 (e) of the Code making disclosures required by that section.

(e) An unlicensed Professional Clinical Counselor Intern may advertise if such advertisement complies with Section 4999.45(c) of the Code making disclosures required by that section.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 137, 650.4, 4980.60 and 4990.14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 137, 4980.44, and 4996.18, and 4999.45, Business and Professions Code.

§1812. SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP CRITERIA

For purposes of denial, suspension, or revocation of a license or registration pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Code, a crime or act shall be considered to be substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a person holding a license under Chapters 13, 13.5, 14, and 16 of Division 2 17 of Division 3 and Chapter 4 of Part 3 of Division 7 of the Code if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a person holding a license to perform the functions authorized by his or her license in a manner consistent with the public health, safety or welfare.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and 4990.14 4999.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 481, 490 and 4982, Business and Professions Code.

§1813. CRITERIA FOR REHABILITATION-DENIAL OF LICENSURE

When considering the denial of a license or registration under Section 480 of the Code, the board, in evaluating the rehabilitation of the applicant and his or her present eligibility for a license or registration shall consider the following criteria:

(a) The nature and severity of the act(s) or crime(s) under consideration as grounds for denial.

(b) Evidence of any act(s) committed subsequent to the act(s) or crime(s) under consideration as grounds for denial which also could be considered as grounds for denial under Section 480 of the Code.

(c) The time that has elapsed since commission of the act(s) or crime(s) referred to in Section 480 of the Code.

(d) The extent to which the applicant has complied with any terms of probation, parole, restitution, or any other sanctions lawfully imposed against the applicant.

(e) Evidence, if any, of rehabilitation submitted by the applicant.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and 4990.14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 482 and 4982, Business and Professions Code.

§1814. CRITERIA FOR REHABILITATION-SUSPENSIONS OR REVOCATIONS

(a) When considering the suspension or revocation of a license, the board, in evaluating the rehabilitation of such person and his or her eligibility for a license will consider the following criteria:

- (1) Nature and severity of the act(s) or crime(s) under consideration as grounds for suspension or revocation.
- (2) Evidence of any act(s) committed subsequent to the act(s) or crime(s) under consideration as grounds for suspension or revocation under Section 490 of the Code.
- (3) The time that has elapsed since commission of the act(s) or crime(s) giving rise to the suspension or revocation.
- (4) Whether the licensee has complied with any terms of probation, parole, restitution or any other sanctions lawfully imposed against such person.
- (5) If applicable, evidence of expungement proceedings pursuant to Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code.
- (6) Evidence, if any, concerning the degree to which a false statement relative to application for licensure may have been unintentional, inadvertent or immaterial.
- (7) Efforts made by the applicant either to correct a false statement once made on an application or to conceal the truth concerning facts required to be disclosed.
- (8) Evidence, if any, of rehabilitation submitted by the licensee.

(b) When considering a petition for reinstatement of a license or registration under the provisions of Section 11522 of the Government Code, the board shall evaluate evidence of rehabilitation submitted by the petitioner considering those criteria specified in Section 1813 of this article.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 4990.44 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 482 and 4982, Business and Professions Code.

§1815. FINGERPRINT SUBMISSION

- (a) All licensees and registrants who have not previously submitted fingerprints as a condition of licensure or registration or for whom an electronic record of the licensee's fingerprints does not exist in the Department of Justice's criminal offender record identification database shall successfully complete a state and federal level criminal offender record information search conducted through the Department of Justice by the licensee's or registrant's renewal date that occurs on or after October 31, 2009, or as directed by the board.
- (b) Failure of a licensee or registrant to comply with subdivision (a) is grounds for disciplinary action by the board against the license or registration.
- (c) Licensees and registrants shall retain, for at least three years, as evidence of their having complied with subdivision (a) either a receipt showing that he or she has electronically transmitted his or her fingerprint images to the Department of Justice or, for those licensees or registrants who did not use an electronic fingerprinting system, a receipt evidencing that the licensee's or registrant's fingerprints were taken.
- (d) Licensees and registrants shall pay, as directed by the Board, the actual cost of compliance with subdivision (a).
- (e) As a condition of petitioning the board for reinstatement of a revoked or surrendered license or registration, an applicant shall comply with subsection (a).

(f) The board may waive the requirements of this section for licensees or registrants who are actively serving in the United States military. The board may not return a license or registration to active status until the licensee or registrant has complied with subdivision (a).

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4990.16, 4990.18, 4990.20 and 4996.6, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4982(a), 4989.54(a), 4992.3(a), and 4996.6, and 4999.90 (a), Business and Professions Code; and Sections 11105(b)(10), and 11105(e), Penal Code.

ARTICLE 2. FEES

§1816. RENEWAL FEES

(a) The annual renewal fee for marriage and family therapist intern registration is seventy-five dollars (\$75.00).

(b) The annual renewal fee for associate clinical social worker registration is seventy-five dollars (\$75.00).

(c) The fee for associate clinical social worker extension is fifty dollars (\$50.00).

(d) The annual renewal fee for professional clinical counselor interns is one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

~~(d)~~ (e) The biennial active renewal fee for a marriage and family therapist is one hundred thirty dollars (\$130.00).

~~(e)~~ (f) The biennial active renewal fee for a licensed educational psychologist is eighty dollars (\$80.00).

~~(f)~~ (g) The biennial active renewal fee for a licensed clinical social worker is one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(h) The biennial active renewal fee for a licensed professional clinical counselor is one hundred seventy-five dollars (\$175.00).

(i) The annual renewal fee for licenses issued pursuant to Section 4999.54 (a)(1) of the Code is one hundred fifty dollars (\$150.00).

~~(g)~~ (j) The biennial renewal fee for a board-approved continuing education provider is two hundred dollars (\$200.00).

~~(h)~~ (k) For the period of January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2002, the biennial renewal fee for a marriage and family therapist is twenty-five dollars (\$25.00).

~~(i)~~ (l) For the period of January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2002, The biennial renewal fee for a licensed educational psychologist is twenty-five dollars (\$25.00).

~~(j)~~ (m) For the period of January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2002, The biennial renewal fee for a licensed clinical social worker is twenty-five dollars (\$25.00).

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.54, 4980.60, and 4990.20 (a), Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4984.7, 4989.68, 4996.3, 4996.6, 4996.18, and 4996.22, and 4999.120, Business and Professions Code.

§1816.1. INITIAL LICENSE AND REGISTRATION FEES

(a) The fee for initial issuance of the marriage and family therapist license shall be one hundred thirty dollars

(\$130.00).

(b) The fee for initial issuance of the licensed educational psychologist license shall be eighty dollars (\$80.00).

(c) The fee for initial issuance of the licensed clinical social worker license shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(d) The fee for initial issuance of the licensed professional clinical counselor license shall be two hundred dollars (\$200.00).

(e) The fee for initial application of the professional clinical counselor intern registration shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, and 4990.20 (a), Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4984.7, 4989.68, 4996.3, and 4996.18, and 4999.120, Business and Professions Code.

§1816.2. EXAMINATION FEES

(a) The licensed clinical social worker standard written examination fee shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(b) The licensed clinical social worker written clinical vignette examination fee shall be one hundred dollars (\$100).

(c) The marriage and family therapist standard written examination fee shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(d) The marriage and family therapist written clinical vignette examination fee shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(e) The licensed educational psychologist written examination fee shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(f) The licensed professional clinical counselor jurisprudence and ethics examination shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(g) The licensed professional clinical counselor examination described in Section 4999.54(b) of the Code shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(h) The fee for the licensed professional clinical counselor written examination shall be one hundred and fifty dollars (\$150.00).

Note: Authority Cited: 4980.60 and 4990.20 (a), Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4984.7, 4989.68, 4996.3(a), and 4996.4, and 4999.120, Business and Professions Code.

§1816.3. EXAMINATION RESCORING FEES

The fee for rescoring any marriage and family therapist, licensed clinical social worker, or licensed educational psychologist written examination shall be twenty dollars (\$20.00).

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4984.7, ~~4986.80~~ 4989.68, and 4996.3, Business and Professions Code.

§1816.4. EXAMINATION APPLICATION FEES

(a) The fee for the marriage and family therapist examination eligibility application shall be one hundred dollars

(\$100.00).

(b) The fee for the licensed clinical social worker examination eligibility application shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(c) The fee for the licensed educational psychologist examination eligibility application shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

(d) The fee for the licensed professional clinical counselor examination eligibility application shall be one hundred and eighty dollars (\$180.00).

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60 and 4990.20 (a), Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4984.7, 4989.68, and 4996.3, and 4999.120, Business and Professions Code.

§1816.5. REPLACEMENT AND CERTIFICATION FEES

(a) The fee for issuance of any replacement registration, license, or certificate shall be twenty dollars (\$20.00).

(b) The fee for issuance of a certificate or letter of good standing shall be twenty-five dollars (\$25.00).

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and 4990.20, 4990.14, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4984.7, 4986.80, 4989.68, and 4996.6, Business and Professions Code.

§1816.6. INACTIVE LICENSE FEES

(a) The fee for issuance or renewal of an inactive marriage and family therapist license shall be sixty-five dollars (\$65.00).

(b) The fee for issuance or renewal of an inactive licensed clinical social worker license shall be fifty dollars (\$50.00).

(c) The fee for issuance or renewal of an inactive licensed educational psychologist license shall be forty dollars (\$40.00).

(d) The fee for issuance or biennial renewal of an inactive licensed professional clinical counselor license shall be eighty seven dollars and fifty cents (\$87.50).

(e) The fee for issuance or annual renewal of an inactive license issued pursuant to Section 4999.54(a)(1) of the Code shall be seventy five dollars (\$75.00).

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60 and 4990.20 (a), Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4984.8, 4989.44, and 4997, and 4999.112, Business and Professions Code.

§1816.7. DELINQUENT FEES

(a) The delinquency fee for the marriage and family therapist license shall be sixty-five dollars (\$65.00) ~~except for the period of time in subsection (e).~~

(b) The delinquency fee for the licensed clinical social worker license shall be fifty dollars (\$50.00) ~~except for the period of time in subsection (f).~~

(c) The delinquency fee for the licensed educational psychologist license shall be forty dollars (\$40.00) ~~except for the period of time in subsection (g).~~

(d) The delinquency fee for the licensed professional clinical counselor license shall be eighty seven dollars and fifty cents (\$87.50).

(e) The delinquency fee for the license issued pursuant to Section 4999.54(a)(1) of the Code shall be seventy five dollars (\$75.00).

~~(d)-(f)The delinquency fee for the continuing education provider approval shall be one hundred dollars (\$100).~~

~~(e) For the period of January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2002, the delinquency fee for the marriage and family therapist license shall be twenty-five dollars (\$25.00).~~

~~(f) For the period of January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2002, the delinquency fee for the licensed clinical social worker license shall be twenty-five dollars (\$25.00).~~

~~(g) For the period of January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2002, the delinquency fee for the licensed educational psychologist license shall be twenty-five dollars (\$25.00).~~

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4984.7, ~~4986.80~~4989.60, and 4996.6, and 4999.104, Business and Professions Code.

§1816.8. APPLICATIONS FOR LICENSURE PURSUANT TO BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE SECTION 4999.54

The application fee for licensure pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 4999.54 shall be one hundred and eighty dollars (\$180).

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4999.54 and 4999.120, Business and Professions Code.

§1819.1. CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER FEES

The application fee for board approval as a continuing education provider is two hundred dollars (\$200.00). This fee also covers the issuance of the initial two-year continuing education provider approval.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34, and 4990.144990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, 4996.22, 4999.32, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

ARTICLE 3. LICENSED PROFESSIONAL CLINICAL COUNSELORS

§1820 EXPERIENCE

(a) In order for experience to qualify under Section 4999.50(a)(2) of the Code, it must have been gained in accordance with Sections 4999.44 through 4999.47 of the Code and the regulations contained in this article.

(b) The term "supervision", as used in this article, includes ensuring that the extent, kind, and quality of counseling performed is consistent with the education, training, and experience of the person being supervised; reviewing client/patient records, monitoring and evaluating assessment, diagnosis, and treatment decisions of the intern; monitoring and evaluating the ability of the intern to provide services at the site(s) where he or she will be practicing and to the particular clientele being served; and ensuring compliance with laws and regulations governing the practice of professional clinical counseling. Supervision shall include that amount of direct observation, or review of audio or video tapes of counseling, as deemed appropriate by the supervisor.

(c) The term “clinical setting,” as used in this article means any setting that meets all the following requirements:

(1) Lawfully and regularly provides mental health counseling or psychotherapy; and,

(2) Provides oversight to ensure that the intern’s work at the setting meets the experience and supervision requirements set forth in Chapter 16 (Commencing with Section 4999.10) of Division 2 of the Business and Professions Code and is within the scope of practice of the profession as specified therein.

(d) The term “community mental health setting,” as used in Section 4999.46 of the Code, means a clinical setting that meets all of the following requirements:

(1) Lawfully and regularly provides mental health counseling or psychotherapy;

(2) Clients routinely receive psychopharmacological interventions in conjunction with psychotherapy, counseling, or other psycho-social interventions;

(3) Clients receive coordinated care that includes the collaboration of mental health providers; and,

(4) Is not a private practice owned by a licensed professional clinical counselor, marriage and family therapist, a licensed psychologist, a licensed clinical social worker, a licensed physician or surgeon, a professional corporation of any of these licensed professions or a corporation of unlicensed individuals .

(e) Supervision shall be credited only upon the following conditions:

(1) During each week in which experience is claimed and for each work setting in which experience is gained, an applicant or intern shall have at least one (1) hour of one-on-one, individual, face-to-face supervisor contact or two (2) hours of face-to-face supervisor contact in a group of not more than eight (8) persons receiving supervision. No more than five (5) hours of supervision, whether individual or group, shall be credited during any single week.

(2) The applicant or intern shall have received at least one (1) hour of one-on-one, individual, face-to-face supervisor contact per week for a minimum of fifty-two (52) weeks.

(3) In a setting which is not a private practice, the authorized supervisor may be employed by the applicant's employer on either a paid or a voluntary basis. If such employment is on a voluntary basis, a written agreement must be executed between the supervisor and the organization, prior to commencement of supervision, in which the supervisor agrees to ensure that the extent, kind, and quality of counseling performed by the intern is consistent with the intern’s training, education, and experience, and is appropriate in extent, kind, and quality. The agreement shall contain an acknowledgment by the employer that the employer:

(A) Is aware of the licensing requirements that must be met by the intern and agrees not to interfere with the supervisor's legal and ethical obligations to ensure compliance with those requirements; and

(B) Agrees to provide the supervisor access to clinical records of the clients counseled by the intern.

(4) The applicant or intern maintains a record of all hours of experience gained toward licensure on the “Weekly Summary of Experience Hours for Professional Clinical Counselor Interns” (form No. 1800 37A-645 New 3/10), hereby incorporated by reference. The record of hours must be signed by the supervisor on a weekly basis. An intern shall retain all “Weekly Summary of Experience Hours for Professional Clinical Counselor Interns” until such time as the applicant is licensed by the board. The board shall have the right to require an applicant to submit all or such portions of the “Weekly Summary of Experience Hours for Professional Clinical Counselor Interns” as it deems necessary to verify hours of experience.

(f) When an intern employed in private practice is supervised by someone other than the employer, the supervisor must be employed by and practice at the same site(s) as the intern's employer.

NOTE: Authority cited: Section 4990.20, 4999.48 and 4999.50, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4999.44, 4999.45, 4999.46, 4999.47 Business and Professions Code.

§1820.5 EXPERIENCE WORKING DIRECTLY WITH COUPLES, FAMILIES, OR CHILDREN

(a) Professional clinical counselor interns and clinical counselor trainees shall be exempt from Section 4999.20 (a)(3) of the Code if the intern or trainee meets both of the following requirements:

(1) Is gaining supervised experience to comply with 4999.20(a)(3)(B), 4999.32(c)(3)(I), or 4999.33(c)(3)(K) of the Code; and,

(2) The supervised experience is gained under the direct supervision of a marriage and family therapist or a licensed professional clinical counselor who meets all requirements specified in Section 4999.20 (a)(3) of the Code.

(b) A licensed professional clinical counselor shall be exempt from Section 4999.20 (a)(3) of the Code if the licensee meets all of the following requirements:

(1) Is gaining supervised experience to comply with Section 4999.20(a)(3)(B) of the Code;

(2) The supervised experience is gained under the direct supervision of a marriage and family therapist or a licensee who meets all requirements specified in Section 4999.20 (a)(3) of the Code.

(3) The licensed professional clinical counselor gaining the hours of supervised work experience to comply with Section 4999.20(a)(3) of the Code meets both of the following requirements:

(A) Has completed, beyond the minimum training and education, six semester units or nine quarter units specifically focused on the theory and application of marriage and family therapy or a named specialization or emphasis area on the qualifying degree in marriage and family therapy; marital and family therapy; marriage, family, and child counseling; or couple and family therapy.

(B) Completes a minimum of six hours of continuing education specific to marriage and family therapy, completed in each renewal cycle.

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 4990.20 and 4999.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4990.20, 4999.20, 4999.32, and 4999.33 Business and Professions Code.

§1821. REQUIREMENTS FOR SUPERVISORS

(a) Any person supervising an intern (hereinafter "supervisor") within California shall comply with the requirements set forth in this section.

(b) Prior to the commencement of any counseling or supervision, the supervisor shall sign under penalty of perjury the "Responsibility Statement for Supervisors of a Professional Clinical Counselor Intern" (form No.1800 37A-643, New 3/10), hereby incorporated by reference, requiring that:

(1) The supervisor possesses and maintains a current valid California license as either a professional clinical counselor, marriage and family therapist, licensed clinical social worker, licensed psychologist, or physician who is certified in psychiatry as specified in Section 4999.12 (h) of the Code and has been so licensed in California for at least two years prior to commencing any supervision.

(2) A supervisor who is not licensed as a professional clinical counselor, shall have sufficient experience, training, and education in professional clinical counseling to competently practice professional clinical counseling in California.

(3) The supervisor keeps himself or herself informed of developments in professional clinical counseling and in California law governing the practice of professional clinical counseling.

(4) The supervisor has and maintains a current license in good standing and will immediately notify the intern of any disciplinary action, including revocation or suspension, even if stayed, probation terms, inactive license status, or any lapse in licensure that affects the supervisor's ability or right to supervise.

(5) The supervisor has practiced psychotherapy or provided direct supervision of trainees, interns, or associate clinical social workers who perform psychotherapy for at least two (2) years within the five (5) year period immediately preceding any supervision.

(6) The supervisor has had sufficient experience, training, and education in the area of clinical supervision to competently supervise interns.

(A) Persons licensed by the board who provide supervision shall complete a minimum of six (6) hours of supervision training or coursework in each renewal period while providing supervision. This training or coursework may apply towards the continuing education requirements set forth in Sections 4980.54, 4996.22, and 4999.76 of the Code.

(B) Persons licensed by the board who provide supervision and who have not met requirements of subsection (A), shall complete a minimum of six (6) hours of supervision training or coursework within sixty (60) days of commencement of supervision.

(7) The supervisor knows and understands the laws and regulations pertaining to both the supervision of interns and the experience required for licensure as a professional clinical counselor.

(8) The supervisor shall ensure that the extent, kind, and quality of counseling performed by the intern is consistent with the education, training, and experience of the intern.

(9) The supervisor shall monitor and evaluate the extent, kind, and quality of counseling performed by the intern by direct observation, review of audio or video tapes of therapy, review of progress and process notes and other treatment records, or by any other means deemed appropriate by the supervisor.

(10) The supervisor shall address with the intern the manner in which emergencies will be handled.

(c) Each supervisor shall provide the intern with the original signed "Responsibility Statement for Supervisors of a Professional Clinical Counselor Intern" (new 03/10, form No. 1800 37A-643) prior to the commencement of any counseling or supervision. Interns shall provide the board with the signed "Responsibility Statement for Supervisors of a Professional Clinical Counselor Intern" (new 03/10, form No. 1800 37A-643) from each supervisor upon application for examination eligibility.

(d) A supervisor shall give at least one (1) week's prior written notice to an intern of the supervisor's intent not to sign for any further hours of experience for such person. A supervisor who has not provided such notice shall sign for hours of experience obtained in good faith where such supervisor actually provided the required supervision.

(e) The supervisor shall obtain from each intern for whom supervision will be provided, the name, address, and telephone number of the intern's most recent supervisor and employer.

(f) In any setting that is not a private practice, a supervisor shall evaluate the site(s) where an intern will be

gaining hours of experience toward licensure and shall determine that: (1) the site(s) provides experience which is within the scope of practice of a professional clinical counselor; and (2) the experience is in compliance with the requirements set forth in section 1820 and section 4999.46 of the Code.

(g) Upon written request of the board, the supervisor shall provide to the board any documentation which verifies the supervisor's compliance with the requirements set forth in this section.

(h) The board shall not deny hours of experience gained towards licensure by any supervisee due to failure of his or her supervisor to complete the training or coursework requirements in subsection (a) (6) (A).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 4990.20 and 4999.48 Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4999.12, 4999.34, 4999.36, 4999.44 through 4999.48 and 4999.54, Business and Professions Code.

§1822. SUPERVISORY PLAN

(a) All licensed mental health professionals acceptable to the board as defined in Section 4999.12 of the Code who assume responsibility for providing supervision shall develop a supervisory plan that describes the goals and objectives of supervision and shall complete and sign under penalty of perjury the "Supervisory Plan", (form no. 1800 37A-521, Rev. 3/10), hereby incorporated by reference.

(b) This supervisory plan shall be completed by each supervisor providing supervision and the original signed plan shall be submitted by the professional clinical counselor intern to the board upon application for examination eligibility.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4990.20 and 4999.48 Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4999.12, 4999.34, 4999.36, 4999.44 through 4999.48 and 4999.54 Business and Professions Code.

ARTICLE 4. MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPIST

§1832. EQUIVALENT ACCREDITING AGENCIES

The following accrediting agencies are essentially equivalent to Western College Association, which has been renamed the Western Association of Schools and Colleges, and Northwest Association of Secondary and Higher Schools:

(a) Middle States Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools.

(b) New England Association of Schools and Colleges.

(c) North Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools.

(d) Southern Association of Colleges and Schools.

(e) The Credentials Evaluation Service of the International Education Research Foundation, Inc. when it evaluates the foreign degree as being equivalent to the required degrees, and those foreign degree programs meet the educational requirements for equivalent degrees and the specific course content and educational requirements as set forth in sections 4980.40 and 4980.41 of the Code.

(f) State of California, Department of Education, Bureau of School Approvals with respect to its functions under Education Code section 29023(a)(2), when applied to master's degree and/or doctoral programs which meet the requirements for an equivalent degree pursuant to section 1830 of these regulations, and the specific course content and educational requirements as set forth in sections 4980.40 and 4980.41, of the Code.

§1833.1. REQUIREMENTS FOR SUPERVISORS

Any person supervising a trainee or an intern (hereinafter "supervisor") within California shall comply with the requirements below.

(a) Prior to the commencement of any counseling or supervision, the supervisor shall sign under penalty of perjury the "Responsibility Statement for Supervisors of a Marriage and Family Therapist Trainee or Intern" (revised ~~08/07~~ 3/10, form #1800 37A-523), hereby incorporated by reference, requiring that:

(1) The supervisor possesses and maintains a current valid California license as either a marriage and family therapist, licensed clinical social worker, licensed professional clinical counselor, licensed psychologist, or physician who is certified in psychiatry as specified in Section 4980.03 (g) of the Code and has been so licensed in California for at least two years prior to commencing any supervision; or

(A) Provides supervision only to trainees at an academic institution that offers a qualifying degree program as specified in Section 4980.40 (a) of the Code; and

(B) Has been licensed in California as specified in Section 4980.03 (g) of the Code, and in any other state, for a total of at least two years prior to commencing any supervision.

(2) A supervisor who is not licensed as a marriage and family therapist, shall have sufficient experience, training, and education in marriage and family therapy to competently practice marriage and family therapy in California.

(3) The supervisor keeps himself or herself informed of developments in marriage and family therapy and in California law governing the practice of marriage and family therapy.

(4) The supervisor has and maintains a current license in good standing and will immediately notify the trainee or intern of any disciplinary action, including revocation or suspension, even if stayed, probation terms, inactive license status, or any lapse in licensure that affects the supervisor's ability or right to supervise.

(5) The supervisor has practiced psychotherapy or provided direct supervision of trainees, interns, ~~or~~ associate clinical social workers, or professional clinical counselor interns who perform psychotherapy for at least two (2) years within the five (5) year period immediately preceding any supervision.

(6) The supervisor has had sufficient experience, training, and education in the area of clinical supervision to competently supervise trainees or interns.

(A) Persons licensed by the board who provide supervision shall complete a minimum of six (6) hours of supervision training or coursework in each renewal period while providing supervision. This training or coursework may apply towards the continuing education requirements set forth in Sections 4980.54, and 4996.22, and 4999.76 of the Code.

(B) Persons licensed by the board who provide supervision and who have not met requirements of subsection (A), shall complete a minimum of six (6) hours of supervision training or coursework within sixty (60) days of commencement of supervision.

(7) The supervisor knows and understands the laws and regulations pertaining to both the supervision of trainees and interns and the experience required for licensure as a marriage and family therapist.

(8) The supervisor shall ensure that the extent, kind, and quality of counseling performed is consistent with the education, training, and experience of the trainee or intern.

(9) The supervisor shall monitor and evaluate the extent, kind, and quality of counseling performed by the trainee or intern by direct observation, review of audio or video tapes of therapy, review of progress and process notes and other treatment records, or by any other means deemed appropriate by the supervisor.

(10) The supervisor shall address with the trainee or intern the manner in which emergencies will be handled.

(b) Each supervisor shall provide the trainee or intern with the original signed "Responsibility Statement for Supervisors of a Marriage and Family Therapist Intern or Trainee"(revised ~~08/07~~ 3/10, form #1800 37A-523) prior to the commencement of any counseling or supervision. Trainees and interns shall provide the board with the signed "Responsibility Statement for Supervisors of a Marriage and Family Therapist Intern or Trainee" (revised ~~08/07~~ 3/10, form #1800 37A-523) from each supervisor upon application for licensure.

(c) A supervisor shall give at least one (1) week's prior written notice to a trainee or intern of the supervisor's intent not to sign for any further hours of experience for such person. A supervisor who has not provided such notice shall sign for hours of experience obtained in good faith where such supervisor actually provided the required supervision.

(d) The supervisor shall obtain from each trainee or intern for whom supervision will be provided, the name, address, and telephone number of the trainee's or intern's most recent supervisor and employer.

(e) In any setting that is not a private practice, a supervisor shall evaluate the site(s) where a trainee or intern will be gaining hours of experience toward licensure and shall determine that: (1) the site(s) provides experience which is within the scope of practice of a marriage and family therapist; and (2) the experience is in compliance with the requirements set forth in section 1833 and section 4980.43 of the Code.

(f) Upon written request of the board, the supervisor shall provide to the board any documentation which verifies the supervisor's compliance with the requirements set forth in this section.

(g) The board shall not deny hours of experience gained towards licensure by any supervisee due to failure of his or her supervisor to complete the training or coursework requirements in subsection (a) (6) (A).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 4980.40, 4980.60, and 4990.20 Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.03,4980.35, 4980.42 through 4980.45, 4980.48, 4980.54 and ,4996.22, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

§1833.2. SUPERVISION OF EXPERIENCE GAINED OUTSIDE OF CALIFORNIA

Experience gained outside of California on or after January 1, 1991 must have been supervised in accordance with the following criteria:

At the time of supervision, the supervisor was licensed or certified by the state in which the supervision occurred and possessed a current license which was not under suspension or probation. The supervisor was licensed or certified by that state, for at least two (2) years prior to acting as supervisor, as either a psychologist, clinical social worker, physician certified in psychiatry as specified in Section 4980.40(f) of the code, professional clinical counselor, or a marriage and family therapist or similarly titled marriage and family practitioner.

In a state which does not license or certify marriage and family therapists or similarly titled marriage and family practitioners, experience may be obtained under the supervision of a person who at the time of supervision held a clinical membership in the American Association of Marriage and Family Therapists for at least two years and who maintained such membership throughout the period of supervision.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.35, 4980.40(f) and 4980.60, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.35, 4980.40(f), 4980.42-4980.45 and 4980.90, Business and Professions Code.

ARTICLE 4.5. PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONS

§1850.6. NAME OF CORPORATION

The wording or abbreviation denoting corporate existence shall be limited to one of the following: "Professional Corporation," "Prof. Corp.," "Corporation," "Corp.," "Incorporated," or "Inc."

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4987.8 and 4998.3, Business and Professions Code.

§1850.7. SHARES: OWNERSHIP AND TRANSFER

(a) The shares of a marriage and family therapist corporation may be issued or transferred only to the issuing corporation or to an appropriately licensed person in accordance with Section 13401.5 of the Corporations Code.

(b) The shares of a licensed clinical social worker corporation may be issued or transferred only to the issuing corporation or to an appropriately licensed person in accordance with Section 13401.5 of the Corporations Code.

(c) Where there are two or more shareholders in a corporation and one of its shareholders dies, or becomes a disqualified person as defined in Section 13401(d) of the Corporations Code, for a period exceeding ninety (90) days, his or her shares shall be sold and transferred to a licensed person or to the issuing corporation, on such terms as are agreed upon. Such sale or transfer shall not be later than six (6) months after any such death and not later than ninety (90) days after the date the shareholder became a disqualified person.

(d) A corporation and its shareholders may, but need not, agree that shares sold to it by a person who becomes a disqualified person may be resold to such person if and when he or she again ceases to become a disqualified person.

(e) The restrictions of subdivisions (a) or (b) where appropriate and, if appropriate, subdivision (c) of this section shall be set forth in the corporation's by-laws or articles of incorporation.

(f) The income of the corporation attributable to professional, licensed services rendered while a shareholder is a disqualified person shall not in any manner accrue to the benefit of such shareholder or his or her shares.

(g) The share certificates of the corporation shall contain either:

(1) An appropriate legend setting forth the restriction of subdivision (a) or (b) where appropriate, and where applicable, the restriction of subdivision (c), or

(2) An appropriate legend stating that ownership and transfer of the shares are restricted and specifically referring to an identified section of the by-laws or articles of incorporation of the corporation wherein the restrictions are set forth.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60 and ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4987.9, 4988, 4998.4 and 4998.5, Business and Professions Code; and Sections 13401, 13401.5, 13403 and 13407, Corporations Code.

ARTICLE 6. LICENSED CLINICAL SOCIAL WORKERS

§1870. REQUIREMENTS FOR ASSOCIATE CLINICAL SOCIAL WORKER SUPERVISORS

Any person supervising an associate clinical social worker registered with the board (hereinafter called "supervisor") within California shall comply with the requirements set forth below.

(a) Prior to the commencement of any therapy or supervision, the supervisor shall sign under penalty of perjury the "Responsibility Statement for Supervisors of an Associate Clinical Social Worker" (revised ~~08/07~~ 3/10, form #1800 37A-522), hereby incorporated by reference, which requires that:

(1) The supervisor possesses and will maintain a current valid California license as a licensed clinical social worker or a licensed mental health professional acceptable to the Board as specified in Section 1874.

(2) The supervisor has and will maintain a current license in good standing and will immediately notify the associate of any disciplinary action, including revocation, suspension (even if stayed), probation terms, inactive license, or any lapse in licensure, that affects the supervisor's ability or right to supervise.

(3) The supervisor has practiced psychotherapy or provided direct supervision of associates, or marriage and family therapist interns or trainees who perform psychotherapy for at least two (2) years within the last five (5) years immediately preceding supervision.

(4) The supervisor has had sufficient experience, training and education in the area of clinical supervision to competently supervise associates.

(A) Persons licensed by the board who provide supervision shall have a minimum of fifteen (15) contact hours in supervision training obtained from a state agency or approved continuing education provider. This training may apply towards the approved continuing education requirements set forth in Sections 4980.54, and 4996.22, and 4999.76 of the Code. The content of such training shall include, but not be limited to:

(i) Familiarity with supervision literature through reading assignments specified by course instructors;

(ii) Facilitation of therapist-client and supervisor-therapist relationships;

(iii) Evaluation and identification of problems in therapist-client and supervisor-therapist relationships;

(iv) Structuring to maximize supervision, including times and conditions of supervision sessions, problem solving ability, and implementing supervisor interventions within a range of supervisory modalities including live, videotape, audiotape, and case report methods;

(v) Knowledge of contextual variables such as culture, gender, ethnicity, and economic issues; and

(vi) The practice of clinical social work, including the mandated reporting laws, and knowledge of ethical and legal issues.

(5) The supervisor knows and understands the laws and regulations pertaining to both supervision of associates and the experience required for licensure as a clinical social worker.

(6) The supervisor shall do all of the following:

(A) Ensure that the extent, kind and quality of clinical social work performed by the associate is consistent with the training and experience of the person being supervised.

(B) Review client/patient records and monitor and evaluate assessment and treatment decisions of the associate clinical social worker.

(C) Monitor and evaluate the ability of the associate to provide services at the site(s) where he or she will be practicing and to the particular clientele being served.

(D) Ensure compliance with all laws and regulations governing the practice of clinical social work.

(7) The supervisor and the associate shall develop the "Supervisory Plan" as described in Section 1870.1. The associate shall submit the original signed plan for each supervisor to the board upon application for licensure.

(8) The supervisor shall provide the associate with the original, signed "Responsibility Statement for Supervisors of an Associate Clinical Social Worker" (revised ~~08/07~~ 3/10, form #1800 37A-522), prior to commencement of any supervision. The associate shall provide the board with the original signed form for each supervisor upon application for licensure.

(9) A supervisor shall give at least one (1) week's written notice to an associate of the supervisor's intent not to sign for any further hours of experience for such person. A supervisor who has not provided such notice shall sign for hours of experience obtained in good faith where such supervisor actually provided the required supervision.

(10) The supervisor shall complete an assessment of the ongoing strengths and limitations of the associate. The assessments shall be completed at least once a year and at the completion or termination of supervision. A copy of all assessments shall be provided to the associate by the supervisor.

(11) Upon written request of the board, the supervisor shall provide to the board any documentation which verifies the supervisor's compliance with the requirements set forth in this section.

(b) The board shall not deny hours of experience gained toward licensure by any associate due to the failure of his or her supervisor to complete the training requirements specified in subsection (a)(4)(A).

Note: Authority cited: Section 4980.60 and 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, ~~4996.21~~, 4996.22 and 4996.23, Business and Professions Code.

§1870.1. SUPERVISORY PLAN

(a) On and after January 1, 1999, all associate clinical social workers and licensed clinical social workers or licensed mental health professionals acceptable to the board as defined in Section 1874 who assume responsibility for providing supervision shall develop a supervisory plan that describes the goals and objectives of supervision and shall complete and sign under penalty of perjury the "Supervisory Plan", (form no. 1800 37A-521, revised ~~12/05~~ 3/10), hereby incorporated by reference.

(b) This supervisory plan shall be completed by each supervisor providing supervision and the original signed plan shall be submitted by the associate clinical social worker to the board upon application for licensure.

Note: Authority cited: Section ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4996.18 and ~~4996.21~~ 4996.23, Business and Professions Code.

§1874. DEFINITION OF ACCEPTABLE MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONALS

For purposes of Sections ~~4996.20(b) and 4996.21(a)~~ 4996.23 (a), a licensed mental health professional acceptable to the board is one who, at the time of supervision, has possessed for at least two years a valid license as a psychologist, marriage and family therapist, licensed professional clinical counselor or physician certified in psychiatry by the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology.

Note: Authority cited: Section ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections ~~4996.20 and 4996.21~~ 4996.23, Business and Professions Code.

§1877. EXAMINATIONS

The written examinations shall consist of the following:

(a) A standard written examination designed to determine an applicant's knowledge, familiarity with the field, and practical understanding of the principles, techniques, objectives, theory and laws under which he or she must operate; and

(b) A written clinical vignette examination designed to assess the applicant's judgment, knowledge of the application of psychosocial and psychotherapeutic methods and measures in treatment, and ability to assume professional responsibilities.

Note: Authority cited: Section ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 4992.1, Business and Professions Code.

§1880. UNLICENSED ASSISTANTS

An unlicensed person employed under Section 4996.15 of the Code to perform limited social work functions shall inform each patient or client prior to performing any such functions that he or she is not a licensed clinical social worker and is under the supervision of a licensed clinical social worker, marriage and family therapist, licensed professional clinical counselor, or a licensed psychologist or a licensed psychiatrist, whichever is applicable.

Note: Authority cited: Section ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Section 4996.15, Business and Professions Code.

§1881. UNPROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

The board may suspend or revoke the license of a licensee or may refuse to issue a license to a person who:

(a) Misrepresents the type or status of license held by such person or otherwise misrepresents or permits the misrepresentation of his or her professional qualifications or affiliations.

(b) Impersonates a licensee or who allows another person to use his or her license.

(c) Aids or abets an unlicensed person to engage in conduct requiring a license.

(d) Intentionally or recklessly causes physical or emotional harm to a client.

(e) Commits any dishonest, corrupt, or fraudulent act which is substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a licensee.

(f) Has sexual relations with a client, or who solicits sexual relations with a client, or who commits an act of sexual abuse, or who commits an act of sexual misconduct, or who commits an act punishable as a sexual

related crime if such act or solicitation is substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a Licensed Clinical Social Worker.

(g) Performs or holds himself or herself out as able to perform professional services beyond his or her field or fields of competence as established by his or her education, training and/or experience.

(h) Permits a person under his or her supervision or control to perform or permits such person to hold himself or herself out as competent to perform professional services beyond the level of education, training and/or experience of that person.

(i) Fails to maintain the confidentiality, except as otherwise required or permitted by law, of all information that has been received from a client during the course of treatment and all information about the client which is obtained from tests or other such means.

(j) Prior to the commencement of treatment, fails to disclose to the client, or prospective client, the fee to be charged for the professional services, or the basis upon which such fee will be computed.

(k) Advertises in a manner which is false or misleading.

(l) Reproduces or describes in public or in publications subject to general public distribution, any psychological test or other assessment device, the value of which depends in whole or in part on the naivete of the subject, in ways that might invalidate such test or device. The licensee shall limit access to such test or device to persons with professional interest who are expected to safeguard their use.

(m) Commits an act or omission which falls sufficiently below that standard of conduct of the profession as to constitute an act of gross negligence.

(n) Pays, accepts or solicits any consideration, compensation or remuneration for the referral of professional clients. All consideration, compensation or remuneration must be in relation to professional counseling services actually provided by the licensee. Nothing in this section shall prevent collaboration among two or more licensees in a case or cases. However, no fee shall be charged for such collaboration except when disclosure of such fee is made in compliance with subparagraph (j) above.

(o) Fails to comply with the child abuse reporting requirements of Penal Code Section 11166.

(p) Fails to comply with the elder and dependent adult abuse reporting requirements of Welfare and Institution Code Section 15630.

Note: Authority cited: Section ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections ~~4990.14~~ 4990.20, 4992.3, 4992.33 and 4996.11, Business and Professions Code; Section 11166, Penal Code, and Section 15630, Welfare and Institution Code.

ARTICLE 7. CITATIONS AND FINES

§1886. AUTHORITY TO ISSUE CITATIONS AND FINES

The executive officer of the board is authorized to determine when and against whom a citation will be issued and to issue citations containing orders of abatement and fines for violations by a licensed marriage and family therapist (MFT), licensed educational psychologist (LEP), licensed clinical social worker (LCSW), licensed professional clinical counselor (LPCC), MFT Intern, ~~or Associate Clinical Social Worker, or professional clinical counselor intern~~ of the statutes and regulations enforced by the Board of Behavioral Sciences.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 125.9, 148, 149 and 4980.60, 4987, 4990-14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 125.9, 148 and 149, Business and Professions Code.

§1886.10. CITATIONS FOR UNLICENSED PRACTICE

The executive officer of the board is authorized to determine when and against whom a citation will be issued and to issue citations containing orders of abatement and fines against persons, as defined in Section 302(d) of the Code, who are performing or who have performed services for which a license is required under the statutes and regulations enforced by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. Each citation issued for unlicensed activity shall contain an order of abatement. Where appropriate, the executive officer shall levy a fine for such unlicensed activity in accordance with section 1886.40 of these regulations. The provisions of sections 1886-1886.80 shall apply to the issuance of citations for unlicensed activity under this section. The sanction authorized under this section shall be separate from and in addition to any other civil or criminal remedies.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 125.9, 148, 149 and 4980.60, 4987, 4990.14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 125.9, 125.95, 148, 149 and 302(d), Business and Professions Code.

§1886.20. CITATION FORMAT

A citation shall be issued whenever any fine is levied or any order of abatement is issued. Each citation shall be in writing and shall describe with particularity the nature and facts of each violation, including a reference to the statute(s) or regulation(s) alleged to have been violated. The citation shall inform the cited person of the right to contest the citation. The citation shall be served upon the cited person personally or by certified mail in accordance with the provisions of Section 11505 (c) of the Government Code.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 125.9, 148, 149 and 4980.60, 4987, 4990.14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 125.9, 148 and 149, Business and Professions Code.

§1886.30. CITATION FACTORS

In assessing an administrative fine or issuing an order of abatement, the executive officer of the board shall give due consideration to the following factors:

- (a) The gravity of the violation.
- (b) The good or bad faith exhibited by the cited person.
- (c) The history of previous violations of the same or similar nature.
- (d) Evidence that the violation was or was not willful.
- (e) The extent to which the cited person has cooperated with the board's investigation.
- (f) The extent to which the cited person has mitigated or attempted to mitigate any damage or injury caused by the violation.
- (g) Any other factors as justice may require.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 125.9, 148, 149 and 4980.60, 4987, 4990.14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 125.9, 148 and 149, Business and Professions Code.

§1886.40. AMOUNT OF FINES

- (a) For purposes of this section, a "citable offense" is defined as any violation of the statutes and regulations enforced by the Board of Behavioral Sciences, including Chapters 13, ~~and 13.5~~, 14, and 16 of Division Two of the Business and Professions Code and Title 16, Division 18, California Code of Regulations.

(b) The executive officer of the board may assess fines for citable offenses which shall not exceed two thousand five hundred dollars (\$2,500) for each investigation except as otherwise provided in this section. The executive officer shall not impose any duplicate fines for the same violation.

(c) The executive officer of the board may assess fines for citable offenses which shall not exceed five thousand (\$5,000) for each investigation if the violation or count includes one or more of the following circumstances:

(1) The cited person has a history of two or more prior citations for similar violations, except for citations withdrawn or dismissed after appeal.

(2) The citation involves multiple violations that demonstrate a willful disregard of the statutes or regulations.

(3) The citation is for a violation or violations involving a minor, elder or dependent adult, or a person with a physical or mental disability as defined in Section 12926 of the Government Code.

(4) The citation involves unlicensed practice.

(5) The citation involves an unlawful or unauthorized breach of confidentiality.

(6) The citation is for failure to submit fingerprints to the Department of Justice as required by the Board.

(d) The executive officer of the board may assess fines which shall not exceed five thousand dollars (\$5,000) for each violation or count if the violation or count involves fraudulent billing submitted to an insurance company, the Medi-Cal program, or Medicare.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 125.9, 148, 149, 4980.60, and 4990.14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 123, 125, 125.9, 136, 141, 148, 149, 480, 651, 654.2, 703, 728, 4980, 4980.02, 4980.30, 4980.43, 4980.44, 4980.45, 4980.46, 4980.48, 4982, 4982.25, 4984, 4987.7, 4987.8, 4988, 4988.1, 4989.10, 4989.12, 4989.14, 4989.20, 4989.22, 4989.24, 4989.26, 4989.28, 4989.34, 4992.3, 4992.36, 4996, 4996.5, 4996.7, 4996.8, 4996.9, 4996.16, 4996.18, 4996.19, 4996.22, 4996.20, 4996.23, 4998.2, 4998.3, and 4998.4, 4999.20, 4999.24, 4999.30, 4999.32, 4999.33, 4999.42, 4999.44, 4999.45, 4999.46, 4999.54, 4999.58, 4999.60, and 4999.76. Business and Professions Code; and Section 15630, Welfare and Institutions Code.

§1886.50. EXCEPTIONS

A citation shall not be issued in any of the following circumstances:

(a) The violation is of such a nature and/or severity that revocation of the license or restrictions on the cited person are necessary in order to ensure consumer protection.

(b) The cited person failed to comply with any requirement of any previous citation, including any order of abatement or fine.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 125.9, 148, 149 and 4980.60, 4987, 4990.14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 125.9, 148 and 149, Business and Professions Code.

§1886.60. COMPLIANCE WITH CITATION/ORDER OF ABATEMENT

(a) If a cited person who has been issued an order of abatement is unable to complete the correction within the time set forth in the citation because of conditions beyond his or her control after the exercise of reasonable diligence, the cited person may request an extension of time in which to complete the correction from the executive officer of the board. Such a request shall be in writing and shall be made within the time set forth for abatement.

(b) If a citation is not contested, or if the citation is contested and the cited person does not prevail, failure to

abate the violation or to pay the assessed fine within the time allowed shall constitute a violation and a failure to comply with the citation or order of abatement.

(c) Failure to timely comply with an order of abatement or pay an assessed fine may result in disciplinary action being taken by the board or other appropriate judicial action being taken against the cited person.

(d) If a fine is not paid after a citation has become final, the fine shall be added to the cited person's license or registration renewal fee. A license or registration shall not be renewed without payment of the renewal fee and fine.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 125.9, 148, 149 and 4980.60, 4987, 4990-14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 125.9, 148 and 149, Business and Professions Code; Section 11505(c), Government Code.

§1886.70. CONTESTED CITATIONS AND REQUEST FOR A HEARING OR INFORMAL CITATION CONFERENCE

(a) If a cited person wishes to contest the citation, assessment of the administrative fine, or order of abatement, the cited person shall, within thirty (30) days after service of the citation, file in writing a request for an administrative hearing to the executive officer regarding the acts charged in the citation, as provided for in subdivision (b)(4) of Section 125.9 of the Code.

(b) In addition to or instead of requesting an administrative hearing, as provided for in subdivision (b)(4) of Section 125.9 of the Code, the cited person may, within 30 days after service of the citation, contest the citation by submitting a written request for an informal citation conference to the executive officer or his/her designee.

(c) Upon receipt of a written request for an informal citation conference, the executive officer or his/her designee shall, within 60 days, hold an informal citation conference with the cited person. The cited person may be accompanied and represented at the informal citation conference by an attorney or other authorized representative.

(d) If an informal citation conference is held, the request for an administrative hearing shall be deemed to be withdrawn and the executive officer or his/her designee may affirm, modify or dismiss the citation, including any fine levied or order of abatement issued, at the conclusion of the informal citation conference. If affirmed or modified, the citation originally issued shall be considered withdrawn and an affirmed or modified citation, including reasons for the decision, shall be issued. The affirmed or modified citation shall be mailed to the cited person and his/her counsel, if any, within 10 days from the date of the informal citation conference.

(e) If a cited person wishes to contest an affirmed or modified citation, the cited person shall, within 30 days after service of the citation, contest the affirmed or modified citation by submitting a written request for an administrative hearing, as provided for in subdivision (b)(4) of Section 125.9 of the Code, to the executive officer or his or her designee. An informal citation conference shall not be held on affirmed or modified citations.

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 125.9, 148, 149 and 4980.60, 4987, 4990-14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 125.9, 148 and 149, Business and Professions Code.

§1886.80. DISCONNECTION OF TELEPHONE SERVICE

Nothing in this section shall preclude the board from using the provisions of Section 149 of the Code in addition to any citation issued to an unlicensed person.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 125.9, 148, 149 and 4980.60, 4987, 4990-14 4990.20, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 125.9, 148 and 149, Business and Professions Code.

ARTICLE 8. CONTINUING EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS FOR MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPISTS, AND LICENSED CLINICAL SOCIAL WORKERS, LICENSED EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGISTS, AND LICENSED PROFESSIONAL CLINICAL COUNSELORS

§1887. DEFINITIONS

As used in this article:

(a) A continuing education "course" means a form of systematic learning at least one hour in length including, but not limited to, academic studies, extension studies, lectures, conferences, seminars, workshops, viewing of videotapes or film instruction, viewing or participating in other audiovisual activities including interactive video instruction and activities electronically transmitted from another location which has been verified and approved by the continuing education provider, and self-study courses.

(b) A "self-study course" means a form of systematic learning performed at a licensee's residence, office, or other private location including, but not limited to, listening to audiotapes or participating in self-assessment testing (open-book tests that are completed by the member, submitted to the provider, graded, and returned to the member with correct answers and an explanation of why the answer chosen by the provider was the correct answer).

(c) A continuing education "provider" means an accredited or approved school, or an association, health facility, governmental entity, educational institution, individual, or other organization that offers continuing education courses and meets the requirements contained in this article.

(d) An "initial renewal period" means the period from issuance of an initial license to the license's first expiration date.

~~(d)~~ (e) A "renewal period" means the two-year period which spans from a license's expiration date to the license's next expiration date.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34, 4999.76 and 4990.20 4990.14, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54 and 4989.34, 4996.22, and 4999.76 Business and Professions Code.

§1887.1. LICENSE RENEWAL REQUIREMENTS

(a) Except as provided in Section 1887.2, a licensee shall certify in writing, when applying for license renewal, by signing a statement under penalty of perjury that during the preceding renewal period the licensee has completed thirty-six (36) hours of continuing education credit as set forth in Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, ~~and 4996.22~~, and 4999.76 of the Code.

(b) A licensee who falsifies or makes a material misrepresentation of fact when applying for license renewal or who cannot verify completion of continuing education by producing a record of course completion, upon request by the board, is subject to disciplinary action under Sections 4982(b), 4989.54 (b), ~~and 4992.3(b)~~, and 4999.90(b) of the Code.

(c) Licensed educational psychologists shall be subject to the license renewal requirements of this section as specified:

(1) Beginning January 1, 2012 and through December 31, 2012 licensees shall certify in writing, when applying for license renewal, by signing a statement under penalty of perjury that during the preceding renewal period the licensee has completed eighteen (18) hours of continuing education.

(2) On and after January 1, 2013 licensees shall meet all of the requirements of subdivisions (a) and (b).

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34 and 4990.14 -4990.20, and 4999.76 Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, ~~and 4996.22~~, and 4999.90 Business and Professions Code.

§1887.2. EXCEPTIONS FROM CONTINUING EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS

~~(a) An initial~~ A licensee in his or her initial renewal period shall complete at least eighteen (18) hours of continuing education, of which no more than nine (9) hours may be earned through self-study courses, prior to his or her first license renewal.

(b) A licensed educational psychologist that renews his or her license beginning January 1, 2012 and through December 31, 2012 shall complete at least eighteen (18) hours of continuing education prior to his or her license renewal.

~~(b) (c)~~ A licensee is exempt from the continuing education requirement if ~~their~~ his or her license is inactive pursuant to Sections 4984.8, 4989.44, and 4997 or 4999.112 of the Code.

~~(c)(d)~~ A licensee may submit a written request for exception ~~form~~from, or reasonable accommodation for, the continuing education requirement, on a form entitled "Request for Continuing Education Exception – Licensee Application," Form No. 1800 37A-635 (Rev 3/10), hereby incorporated by reference, for any of the reasons listed below. The request must be submitted to the board at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date of the license. The board will notify the licensee, within thirty (30) working days after receipt of the request for exception or reasonable accommodation, whether the exception or accommodation was granted. If the request for exception or accommodation is denied, the licensee is responsible for completing the full amount of continuing education required for license renewal. If the request for exception or accommodation is approved, it shall be valid for one renewal period. The board shall grant the exception if the licensee can provide evidence, satisfactory to the board, that:

(1) The Board shall grant an exception if the licensee can provide evidence, satisfactory to the board that:

~~(1) (A)~~ For at least one year during the licensee's previous license renewal period the licensee was absent from California due to military service;

~~(2) (B)~~ For at least one year during the licensee's previous license renewal period the licensee resided in another country; or

~~(3) (2)~~ The board may grant a reasonable accommodation if, ~~During~~ for at least one year during the licensee's previous license renewal period, the licensee or an immediate family member, including a domestic partner, where the licensee has ~~is the~~ primary responsibility for the care of caregiver for that family member, was suffering from or suffered had a physical or mental disability or medical condition as defined in Section 12926 of the Government Code. A disability is a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of the major life activities of an individual. The physical or mental disability or medical condition must be verified by a licensed physician or psychologist with special expertise in the area of the physical or mental disability or medical condition. Verification of the physical or mental disability or medical condition must include: be submitted by the licensee on a form entitled "Request for Continuing Education Exception – Verification of Disability or Medical Condition," Form No. 1800 37A-636 (New 03/10), hereby incorporated by reference.

~~(A) the nature and extent of the disability;~~

~~(B) an explanation of how the disability would hinder the licensee from completing the continuing education requirement; and~~

~~(C) the name, title, address, telephone number, professional license or certification number, and original signature of the licensed physician or psychologist verifying the disability.~~

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.54, 4980.60, ~~4989.34~~, 4990.20(a), and 4996.22, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code; Sections 12944 and 12926, Government Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, ~~4989.34~~, and 4996.22, 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

§1887.3. CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE REQUIREMENTS

(a) A During each renewal period, a licensee shall accrue at least thirty-six (36) hours of continuing education

~~courses~~ coursework as defined in Section 1887.4. A licensee may accrue no more than eighteen (18) hours of continuing education earned through self-study courses during a ~~single~~ each renewal period.

(b) ~~Pursuant to Section 29 of the Code, a~~ A licensee marriage and family therapist and clinical social worker licensee who started graduate study prior to January 1, 1986, shall take a continuing education course in the detection and treatment of alcohol and other chemical substance dependency during their first renewal period after the adoption of these regulations. The course shall be at least seven (7) hours in length and its content shall comply with the requirements of Section 29 of the Code. This is a one-time requirement for those licensees specified above. Equivalent alcohol and other chemical substance dependency courses taken prior to the adoption of these regulations, or proof of equivalent teaching or practice experience, may be submitted to the board upon request in lieu of this requirement; however, this coursework or experience shall not be credited as hours towards the continuing education requirements.

(c) Pursuant to Section 32 of the Code, a marriage and family therapist and clinical social worker licensee shall take a continuing education course in the characteristics and methods of assessment and treatment of people living with human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and acquired immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS) during their first renewal period after the adoption of these regulations. The course shall be at least seven (7) hours in length and its content shall comply with the requirements of Section 32 of the Code. This is a one-time requirement for all licensees. Equivalent HIV and AIDS courses taken prior to the adoption of these regulations, or proof of equivalent teaching or practice experience, may be submitted to the board upon request in lieu of this requirement; however, this coursework or experience shall not be credited as hours towards the continuing education requirements.

(d) ~~Any person renewing his or her license on and after January 1, 2004 shall have completed not less than~~ complete a minimum of six (6) hours of continuing education in the subject of law and ethics for each renewal period. The six (6) hours shall be considered part of the thirty-six (36) hour continuing education requirement.

(e) ~~If a licensee teaches a course, the licensee may claim credit for the course only one time during a single renewal period, receiving the same amount of hours of continuing education credit as a licensee who attended the course.~~

(f) A licensee may not claim the same course more than once during a single renewal period for hours of continuing education credit.

(g) A licensee who takes a course as a condition of probation resulting from disciplinary action by the board may not apply the course as credit towards the continuing education requirement.

(h) Provisions of this section shall apply to licensed educational psychologists as follows:

(1) Beginning January 1, 2012 and through December 31, 2012 licensees shall complete at least eighteen (18) hours of continuing education prior to his or her license renewal, in accordance with subdivision (d) through (g).

(2) On and after January 1, 2013, licensees shall meet the requirements of subdivision (a) through (g).

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, ~~and 4990.20(a)~~ 4989.34, 4990.20 and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 29, 32, 4980.54, ~~4989.34, and 4996.22;~~ and 4999.76 Business and Professions Code.

§1887.4. CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE CONTENT

(a) A provider shall ensure that the content of a course shall be relevant to the practice of marriage and family therapy, educational psychology, professional clinical counselor, or clinical social work and meet the requirements set forth in Sections 4980.54, ~~4989.34 and 4996.22,~~ and 4999.76 of the Code. The content of a course shall also be related to direct or indirect patient/client care.

(1) Direct patient/client care courses cover specialty areas of therapy (e.g., theoretical frameworks for clinical practice; intervention techniques with individuals, couples, or groups).

(2) Indirect patient/client care courses cover pragmatic aspects of clinical practice (e.g., legal or ethical issues, consultation, recordkeeping, office management, insurance risks and benefits, managed care issues, research obligations, supervision training).

(b) A provider shall ensure that a course has specific objectives that are measurable.

(c) Upon completion of a course, a licensee shall evaluate the course through some type of evaluation mechanism.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, ~~and 4990.14~~ 4989.34, 4990.20 and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, ~~and 4996.22, 4989.34, and 4999.76~~, Business and Professions Code.

§1887.5. HOURS OF CONTINUING EDUCATION CREDIT

(a) One hour of instruction is equal to one hour of continuing education credit.

(b) One academic quarter unit is equal to ten (10) hours of continuing education credit.

(c) One academic semester unit is equal to fifteen (15) hours of continuing education credit.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, ~~and 4990.14~~ 4989.34, 4990.20, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, ~~and 4989.34, 4996.22, and 4999.76~~, Business and Professions Code.

§1887.6. CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDERS

A continuing education course shall be taken from:

(a) an accredited or approved postsecondary institution that meets the requirements set forth in Sections 4980.54(f)(1), 4989.34, ~~or 4996.22(d)(1)~~, or 4999.76(d) of the Code; or

(b) a board-approved provider with a valid, current approval as provided in Section 1887.7.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, ~~and 4990.14~~, 4989.34, 4990.20 and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, ~~and 4989.34, 4996.22 and 4999.76~~, Business and Professions Code.

§1887.7. BOARD-APPROVED PROVIDERS

(a) A continuing education provider must meet the board's course content and instructor qualifications criteria, as provided under this article, to qualify to become a board-approved provider.

(b) A continuing education provider shall submit a completed Continuing Education Provider Application (Form no. 1800 37A-633, ~~new 5/97~~ Rev. 03/10), hereby incorporated by reference, remit the appropriate fees, and obtain a continuing education provider number from the board to become a board-approved provider.

(c) A provider may not apply for a new provider approval number within one year of an existing approval's expiration unless the provider has undergone a change of ownership.

(d) A provider approval issued under this section shall expire on the last day of the twenty-fourth month after the approval issue date. To renew an unexpired provider approval, the provider shall, on or before the expiration date of the approval, pay the two-year renewal fee set forth in Section 1816 of these regulations.

(e) When a provider's approval is expired, the provider may not present a course for continuing education credits for licensees of the Board of Behavioral Sciences.

(f) Board-approved provider numbers are non-transferable.

(g) The Board shall send a renewal notice, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration, to any continuing education provider approved by the Board, to the address of record for such provider.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34, ~~and 4990.20~~, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, ~~and 4996.22, and 4999.76~~, Business and Professions Code.

§1887.8. REVOCATION AND DENIAL OF BOARD-APPROVED PROVIDER STATUS

(a) The board may revoke its approval of a provider or deny a provider application for good cause. Good cause includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- (1) a provider is convicted of a felony or misdemeanor offense substantially related to the activities of a board-approved provider;
- (2) a provider, who is a licensee of the board, fails to comply with any provisions of Chapters 13, 13.5, and 14 and 16 of the Business and Professions Code or Title 16, Division 18 of the California Code of Regulations; or
- (3) a provider makes a material misrepresentation of fact in information submitted to the board.

(b) After a thorough case review, should the board decide to revoke or deny its approval of a provider, it shall give the provider written notice setting forth its reasons for revocation or denial. The provider may appeal the revocation or denial in writing, within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the revocation or denial notice, and request a hearing with the board's designee. The revocation is stayed at this point. Should the board's designee decide to uphold the revocation or denial, the provider may appeal the decision of the board's designee in writing, within seven (7) days after receipt of the decision of the board's designee, and request a hearing with a continuing education appeals committee appointed by the board chairperson. The hearing will take place at the next regularly scheduled board meeting, provided the appeal is received before the meeting is noticed to the public. It is at the discretion of the board's designee whether to stay the revocation further.

The continuing education appeals committee shall contain three board members, one public member and two members representing two of the three license types regulated by the board. The decision of the continuing education appeals committee is final.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34, and ~~4990.14~~4990.20 and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, 4996.22, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

§1887.9. COURSE ADVERTISEMENTS

A provider shall ensure that information publicizing a continuing education course is accurate and includes the following:

- (a) the provider's name;
- (b) the provider number, if a board-approved provider;
- (c) the statement "Course meets the qualifications for _____ hours of continuing education credit for MFTs, LPCs, LEPs and/or LCSWs as required by the California Board of Behavioral Sciences";
- (d) the provider's policy on refunds in cases of non-attendance by the registrant; and
- (e) a clear, concise description of the course content and objectives.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34, and ~~4990.14~~4990.20 and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, and 4996.22, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

§1887.10. COURSE INSTRUCTOR QUALIFICATIONS

(a) A provider shall ensure that an instructor teaching a course has at least two of the following minimum qualifications:

- (1) a license, registration, or certificate in an area related to the subject matter of the course. The license, registration, or certificate shall be current, valid, and free from restrictions due to disciplinary action by this board or any other health care regulatory agency;
- (2) a master's or higher degree from an educational institution in an area related to the subject matter of the course;
- (3) training, certification, or experience in teaching subject matter related to the subject matter of the course; or
- (4) at least two years' experience in an area related to the subject matter of the course.

(b) During the period of time that any instructor has a healing arts license that is restricted pursuant to a disciplinary action in California or in any other state or territory, that instructor shall notify all approved continuing education providers for whom he or she provides instruction of such discipline before instruction begins or immediately upon notice of the decision, whichever occurs first.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34, and ~~4990.14~~4990.20 and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4982.15, 4989.34, and 4996.22, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

§1887.11. RECORDS OF COURSE COMPLETION

Upon completion of a course, a provider shall issue a record of course completion to a licensee (e.g., letters of verification of attendance, certificates, gradeslips, transcripts) containing the following information:

- (a) name of licensee and license number or other identification number;
- (b) course title;
- (c) provider name and address;
- (d) provider number, if a board-approved provider;
- (e) date of course;
- (f) number of hours of continuing education credit; and
- (g) signature of course instructor, provider, or provider designee.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34, and 4990.144990.20 and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, and 4996.22, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

§1887.12. LICENSEE AND PROVIDER COURSE RECORDS

(a) A licensee shall maintain records of course completion for a period of at least two (2) years from the date of license renewal for which the course was completed.

(b) A provider shall maintain records related to continuing education courses for a period of at least four (4) years. Records shall include:

- (1) syllabi for all courses;
- (2) the time and location of all courses;
- (3) course advertisements;
- (4) course instructors' vitae or resumes;
- (5) attendance rosters with the names and license numbers of licensees who attended the courses;
- (6) sign-in sheets; and
- (7) records of course completion issued to licensees who attended the courses.

(c) The board may audit the course records of a provider to ensure compliance with the board's continuing education requirements.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34, and 4990.144990.20 and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, and 4996.22, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

1887.13 RENEWAL OF EXPIRED APPROVAL

A provider approval that has expired may be renewed at any time within one (1) year after its expiration upon all of the following:

- (a) Filing an application for renewal on a form prescribed by the board.
- (b) Payment of the renewal fee in effect on the last regular renewal date.
- (c) Payment of the delinquency fee in effect on the last regular renewal date.
- (d) Submission of a letter stating that no courses were presented while the provider's approval status was expired. If a course was presented during that time, the letter shall state that all participants have been notified that the provider's approval status at the time of completion of the continuing education was expired and that continuing education hours will not be disallowed by the Board if the provider renews within one (1) year after its expiration.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, and 4989.34, 4990.20, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, and 4996.22, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

1887.14 TIME LIMIT FOR RENEWAL OF APPROVAL AFTER EXPIRATION; NEW APPROVAL

A provider approval that is not renewed within one year of its expiration date may not be renewed, reinstated, or reissued thereafter, but the provider may apply for and obtain a new approval if:

- (a) No fact, circumstance, or condition exists that, if the approval were issued, would justify its revocation; and
- (b) The applicant pays the fees that would be required if applying for approval for the first time.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections 4980.60, 4989.34, and 4990.20 and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4980.54, 4989.34, and 4996.22, and 4999.76, Business and Professions Code.

ARTICLE 9. DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES

§1888. DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES

In reaching a decision on a disciplinary action under the Administrative Procedure Act (Government Code Section 11400 et seq.), the Board of Behavioral Sciences shall consider the disciplinary guidelines entitled "Board of Behavioral Sciences Disciplinary Guidelines" [Rev. ~~November 2008~~ March 2010] which are hereby incorporated by reference. Deviation from these guidelines and orders, including the standard terms of probation, is appropriate where the Board in its discretion determines that the facts of the particular case warrant such a deviation – for example: the presence of mitigating factors; the age of the case; evidentiary problems.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4980.60, 4987, and 4990.20 ~~4990.14~~, Business and Professions Code; and Section 11400.20, Government Code.
Reference: Sections 4982, 4986.70, and 4992.3, and 4999.90, Business and Professions Code; and Sections 11400.20, and 11425.50(e), Government Code.

Dated: _____

KIM MADSEN
Executive Officer

